RNS Number : 0397N
Agronomics Limited
30 December 2025

30 December 2025
Agronomics Limited
("Agronomics" or the "Company")

Annual audited results for the year ending 30 June 2025
Notice of AGM

The Board of Agronomics, a leading listed investor in cellular agriculture, is pleased to announce its audited annual
results for the year ending 30 June 2025.

Copies of the 2025 Audited Report and Financial Statements are being posted to shareholders and will shortly be
available from the Company's website, https://agronomics.im/investors/, in the investor portal section, under the
financial reports tab.

The Company will post its Notice of Annual General Meeting ("AGM") to Shareholders at the same time. The AGM
will be held at the Sanderson Suite, Claremont Hotel, Loch Promenade, Douglas, Isle of Man IM1 2LX at 11:00 a.m.
on 13 February 2026.

The Board considers it important that all shareholders should have the opportunity to exercise their voting rights at
the AGM. To this end, the Company invites shareholders to complete the voting proxy form as early as possible.
Shareholders may also submit questions to the Company Secretary either in writing at the registered office or by
email to katie@bumbrae.com prior to the meeting and as early as possible.

Financial Highlights

- Net Asset Value per share (NAV) at 30 June 2025 of 12.34 pence (2024: 15.58 pence), a decrease of 20%,

- Net operating loss of £32,749,849 (2024 net operating profit of £10,989,608), with no Shellbay fee being due
for the year (2024: Shellbay fee of £Nil),

- Net investment losses of £25,103,164 (2024: net investment losses of £8,342,317),

- The carrying amount of invested assets is £121,009,941 (2024: £145,143,166), a decrease of 16%,

- Cash and cash equivalents and cash deposits stood at £3,606,187 (2024: £12,235,092),

- Total assets of £124,668,535 (2024: £157,435,237), and

- Total liabilities of £147,600 (2024: £166,167).

The Board notes the ¢ £32.7 million decline in the Company's NAV during the year which relates primarily to the
following:

- An unrealised foreign exchange loss of £7.7 million across the portfolio companies where we hold our
investments in EUR, USD and AUD, due to negative currency movements against the Company's reporting
currency of Pound Sterling during the year.

The USD, EUR and AUD rates had the following movements during the year, contributing to the unrealised
foreign exchange loss noted above:

30 June 2025 30 June 2024 % movement
USD:GBP 1.293 1.270 1.8%
EUR:GBP 1.190 1.180 0.8%
AUD:GBP 1.993 1.913 4.2%

- A complete write-down of Agronomics' position in Meatable BV Inc of £11.9 million was undertaken, following
the company going into woluntary liquidation post yearend;

- A wite down of the investment held in Solar Foods of £3.9 million, revalued to yearend spot price;

- A wite down of the investment held in Liberation Bicindustries of £2.3 million, following the close of its Series
A1 equity raise;

- A write down of the investment held in Blue Nalu of £5.2 million, following the close of its conwertible
promissory note and preferred share equity raise;

- A wrte down of positions held in Geltor Inc and Good Dog Food t/a Meatly by £0.2 million and £0.5 million

respectively;

- Full write downs of the positions held in Wild Microbes and Bond Pets of £0.4 million and £0.7 million
respectively.

- Cash balance reduced by £1.4 million relating to ongoing operating costs, compared to 2024 operating costs
of £2.4 million.

- Decrease in NAV offset by loan note and cash interest eamed during the year of £1.5 million.
Operational Highlights

There have been several operational highlights throughout the year. During the financial year, the Company made one
follow-on investment, and saw portfolio companies reach significant technical and commercial milestones and
conclude new partnerships:

During the year, a total of £7.5 million was inwested in Liberation Bioindustries Inc ("Liberation
Bioindustries"), formerly Liberation Labs Holdings Inc, in the form of conwertible loan notes.

On 17 July 2024, Good Dog Food Ltd, trading as Meatly, became the first company in the world to receive
regulatory clearance for cultivated meat to be sold as pet food, following approval from UK regulators
including the Food Standards Authority and the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Meatly's
ciltivated chicken for net food can now be sold in the LIK
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On 19 August 2024, Solar Foods Oyj unweiled two new Solein™-powered products in partnership with the
Japanese multinational food and bioscience corporation Ajinomoto Co. Inc., to be launched in the Singapore
following approval from the Singapore Food Agency. Additionally, Solar Foods announced that it obtained
self-affirmed Generally Recognized as Safe status in the US for the sale of its single-cell protein, Solein™.

On 10 September 2024, Solar Foods completed a listing of its shares to trading on the Nasdaq First North
Growth Market Finland, with its shares trading under the ticker "SFOODS".

On 27 November 2024, the Company announced that All G Co Holdings Pty Limited ("All G"), became the
first company in the world to receive regulatory clearance for the sale of recombinant bovine lactoferrin in
China. This should allow initial revenue streams prior to a Series B raise. Lactoferin is only one of All G's
high-value animal-free proteins in development.

On 7 February 2025, Good Dog Food t/a Meatly became the first company in the world to supply for sale
cultivated meat for pet food, as well as the first to sell cultivated meat in Europe.

On 15 April 2025, Liberation Bioindustries reported a strategic partnership with NEOM Investment Fund to
help dewelop a precision-fermentation facility in Saudi Arabia. This partnership follows NEOM's participation in
Liberation Bicindustries's US 50.5 million fundraise announced on 30 January 2025;

On 30 April 2025, BlueNalu Inc announced that it expanded its strategic partnership with Nomad
Foods Limited, Europe's leading frozen food company, to support the commercialisation of its cell-cultivated
seafood products in the UK and across Europe;

On 6 May 2025, Meatable B.V. announced the company formed a strategic collaboration to advance the
global commercialisation of cultivated meat with TruMeat Co., Ltd, which specialises in the contract
manufacturing of cultivated meat at commercial scale;

On 8 May 2025, Liberation Bioindustries announced a manufacturing partnership with Dutch ingredients
startup Vivici B.V; and

On 28 May 2025, Good Dog Food Limited (t/a "Meatly") announced that it has deweloped an in-house
bioreactor to accelerate the scalable production of its cultivated pet food.

Post Yearend Highlights

On 24 July 2025, Solar Foods Oyj announced that, in partnership with Japanese food manufacturer
Ajinomoto Co. Inc, it introduced a Solein®-powered Flowering Ice Cream in connection with the World
Aquatics Championships, Singapore 2025.

On 12 September 2025, Clean Food Group Limited reported it received approval for its CLEAN Qil™ 25
product to be used as a cosmetic ingredient in the United Kingdom, Europe, and the United States.

On 23 September 2025, Onego Bio Limited announced that the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA")
issued a "no questions" letter regarding the company's conclusion that its flagship product, marketed as
Bioalbumen®, is Generally Recognized As Safe ("GRAS") under its conditions of use in a wide range of food
and beverage applications.

On 30 September 2025, Clean Food Group Limited announced that it acquired the assets of Algal Omega 3
Ltd.

On 10 November, the EVERY Company successfully closed a US 55 million Series D financing round.

On 21 November 2025, Supermeat raised a further US 3.5 million through the issues of SAFEs, with
Agronomics investing US 2 miillion into the SAFE, split into US 750,000 in cash and issue the equivalent of
US 1.25 million in new shares at a share price equivalent to the Company's NAV as at 30 September 2025.

On 19 December 2025, Liberation Bioindustries closed the first tranche of its Series A1 equity round.
On 30 December 2025, Blue Nalu closed a conwertible promissory note and preferred share equity raise.

Jim Mellon, Chair of Agronomics, commented:

"The first half of 2025 was a year of food insecurity, rising prices and weakening supply chains. From beef to
sunflower oil, chocolate to coffee: climate shocks, resource constraints and geopolitics converged to make food less
stable and more expensive. What used to be treated as once in a decade volatility is now annual, and it is hitting
households, retailers and producers alike.

For Agronomics, this financial year has continued to show significant technological and commercial progress of its
portfolio companies. In particular, precision fermentation companies are advancing their commercial traction, with
Onego securing additional funding for its egg protein development and Formo for its precision fermented cheese. All-
G received regulatory approval for cosmetics in China and Liberation Bioindustries signed several offtake
agreements, among others with NEOM and Vivici.

It has also been encouraging to see more regulatory approvals than ever before, including egg and dairy proteins,
specialty oils and fats, and the first wave of cell cultivated products, including the first seafood product in the US.
However, new and followon investments into clean food companies appear to have significantly declined in 2025.
This has led to a shrinking of the number and consolidation of clean food companies, which should lead to stronger
companies emerging next year."

This announcement contains inside information for the purposes of Article 7 of the Market Abuse Regulation (EU)
No. 596/2014, as it forms part of UK Domestic Law by virtue of the European Union (Withdraval) Act 2018. Upon the
publication of this announcement, this inside information is now considered to be in the public domain.

About Agronomics

Agronomics is a leading Londonisted company focusing on investment opportunities within the field of cellular
agriculture. The Company has established a portfolio of over 20 companies in this rapidly advancing sector. It seeks
to invest in companies owning technologies with defensible intellectual property that offer new ways of producing food
and materials with a focus on products historically derived from animals. These technologies are driving a major
disruption in agriculture, offering solutions to improve sustainability, as well as addressing human health, animal
welfare and envronmental damage. This disruption will decouple supply chains from the environment and animals and
improve food security for the world's expanding population. A full list of Agronomics' portfolio companies is available at

https://agronomics.im/.
For further information please contact:
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Nominated Adviser Statement

Beaumont Comish Limited ("Beaumont Cornish"), is the Company's Nominated Adviser and is authorised and
regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority. Beaumont Comish's responsibilities as the
Company's Nominated Adviser, including a responsibility to advise and guide the Company on its responsibilities
under the AIM Rules for Companies and AIM Rules for Nominated Advisers, are owed solely to the London Stock
Exchange. Beaumont Comish is not acting for and will not be responsible to any other persons for providing
protections afforded to customers of Beaumont Comish nor for advising them in relation to the proposed
arrangements described in the announcement or any matter referred to in it.

Agronomics Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025

Chair's statement

| am pleased to present the Annual Report and audited accounts for Agronomics Limited ("Agronomics" or the "Company")
for the year ended 30 June 2025.

This financial year, Agronomics' portfolio has continued to show significant technological, but more importantly, commercial
progress. Specifically, precision fermentation companies are entering into commercial agreements and are starting to
senvice customers in increasing volumes. Naturally, this follows increasing customer acceptance with the quality and price
that precision fermentation can now manufacture proteins from. An increasing number of companies obtaining regulatory
approval for their products adds to the acceleration in this segment and market adoption.

Clean food precision fermentation companies such as Liberation Bioindustries, The EVERY Company, All-G Foods and
Onego Bio hawe been gaining momentum in commercialisation and scaling. Precision fermentation is being
commercialised across different proteins and geographies, and our companies are seeking partnerships and joint ventures
with major food producers. Solar Foods, one of our Finnish companies, completed an IPO during September 2024.

Clean food cultivated meat, such as BlueNalu, Meatly and SuperMeat, while making significant advances in technology and
cost reduction, are still a few years away from deep market penetration and scaling. Hence, we continue to support them in
their research and development but expect that segment to consolidate over the next two years.

1 would like to highlight that, while our portfolio companies have not been very active in raising funds the last financial year,
they have been extremely focused on pushing their product development, obtaining regulatory approvals and commencing
commercialisation activiies. We therefore believe that within our portfolio of companies there is significant unlocked
potential to be realised, which when achieved will resultin uplifts in investment valuations and the net asset value position of
the Company. No valuation changes have been made to account for this potential, which is in line with our current valuation
policy and methodology of valuing our privately held investments at the price of the most recent market transaction.

Financial Review

The Company recorded a net operating loss of £32,749,849 for the year (2024: net operating loss of £10,989,608). During
the year, no Shellbay fee was due (2024: £Nil). Our investment loss, including net unrealised losses on investment fair
valuation, reflected a loss of £25,103,164 (2024: loss of £8,342,317). Unrealised foreign exchange losses of £7,743,900
(2024: losses of £2,143,477) have been recognised in profit and loss. The net operating loss for the year is largely due to
the full impairment of our investment in Meatable BV amounting to £11.9 million, with the Company going into liquidation
post yearend, and unrealised write downs to the carrying value of our investments in Solar Foods (£3.9 million), Liberation
Bioindustries (£2.3 million), Blue Nalu (£5.2 million). Further details of the movement in investment valuations are detailed
in the Investment Review section on page 4 and 5.

The carmying amount of invested assets is £121,009,941 (2024: £145,143,166), a decrease of 16%, and cash and
equivalents and bank deposits stood at £3,606,187 (2024: £12,235,092). Our total assets stood at £124,668,535 (2024:
£157,435,237). Total liabilities stood at £147,601 (2024: £166,167). As a result, the net asset value per share at 30 June
2025 was 12.34 pence (2024: 15.58 pence), a decrease of 20%.

Financing activity

During the year, the Company received warrant exercise notices and issued a total of 5,712 Ordinary Shares, for cash
proceeds of £1,714.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Agronomics is committed to best practice in corporate governance throughout the Company. The Directors
have agreed to comply with the provisions of the Quoted Companies Alliance ("QCA") Corporate Governance Code (2023) to
the extent which is appropriate to its nature and scale of operations. Details of the Companys compliance with the QCAcan
be found below.

Investment Strategy and Outlook

Looking ahead, Agronomics' investment strategy will remain firmly centered on accelerating the global commercialisation of
this sector. The manufacturing capacity now available to Clean Food Group represents a true inflection point for the
company, one that will enable companies using precision fermentation to scale rapidly and push the boundaries of clean-
ingredient innovation. In the cultivated proteins industry, we also expect a new wave of seafood companies to reach the
market in the near future.

While the investment and funding environment for clean food companies is likely to remain challenging for some time,
leading to consolidation, restructuring, and in some cases, business closures, we remain more optimistic than ever about
the sector's long-term potential. The clean food industry is uniquely positioned to strengthen global food security, stimulate
economic arowth. and sianificantlv reduce the environmental impact of our food svstem. The opportunities ahead are



profound, and Agronomics is committed to helping drive this transformation.

Jim Mellon

Executive Chair
27 December 2025

Investment Review

During the year, the Company made two follow-on investments, had one of its investments complete a stock exchange
listing and saw portfolio companies receive government support and form new strategic partnerships:

CellXLimited

17 July 2024 - Portfolio company Meatly received UK regulatory clearance to sell cultivated chicken pet food, the first
approval of its kind globally. Agronomics' £1.2 million investment is carried at £4.5 million, representing ¢.3.0% of NAV
and a 25.5% stake

18 July 2024 - Portfolio company Onego Bio secured €14 million from the EIC Accelerator and an additional Series A
investor, bringing total funding to €65 million. Agronomics' €8.4 million investment is carried at £11.1 million,
representing ¢.7.7% of NAVand a 16.9% stake

4 September 2024 - Portfolio company GALY closed an oversubscribed US 33 million Series B led by Breakthrough
Energy Ventures with participation from H&M Group Ventures and Inditex (ia Mundi Ventures). Agronomics' US 1.5
million investment is carried at £2.4 million (MOIC 2.2x, IRR 28.0%), representing ¢.1.6% of NAVand a 2.9% stake

10 September 2024 - Portfolio company Formo secured US 61 miillion in Series B funding with participation from new
investors including REWE Group. Agronomics' €4.4 million investment is carried at £9.4 million (MOIC 2.5x IRR
30.7%), representing ¢.6.5% of NAVand a 4.5% stake

10 September 2024 - Portfolio company Solar Foods commenced trading on the Nasdaq First North Growth Exchange
under the ticker "SFOODS"

15 October 2024 - Agronomics invested US 2 million in Liberation Bioindustries as part of a US 3.5 million secured
promissory note. Liberation Bioindustries also received a US 1.39 million US DoD award under its Distributed
Bioindustrial Manufacturing Program

27 November 2024 - Portfolio company All G received regulatory clearance in China for the sale of recombinant bovine
lactoferrin, the first approval of its kind globally. Agronomics has invested AU 15 million to date, carried at £7.2 million

21 January 2025 - Portfolio company Formo secured a €35 million loan from the European Investment Bank to scale
manufacturing of its Koji protein cheeses and develop new products.

30 January 2025 - Portfolio company Liberation Bioindustries closed a US 50.5 million convertible note round,
including US 7.4 million from Agronomics. Total investment from Agronomics now stands at US 27.0 million (£21.8
million) carried at £31.8 million, representing ¢.21.9% of NAV and a 35.3% equity stake

7 February 2025 - Portfolio company Good Dog Food Limited (ta "Meatly") became the first company in the world to
supplyfor sale cultivated meat for pet food, as well as the first company to sell cultivated meat in Europe

4 March 2025 - Portfolio company Solar Foods secured a €10 million grant from Business Finland to support
commissioning of Factory 02, following the launch of Factory 01 in April 2024

15 April 2025 - Portfolio company Liberation Bioindustries announced a strategic partnership with NEOM Investment
Fund to design and dewvelop a precision fermentation facilityin Saudi Arabia.

8 May 2025 - Portfolio company Liberation Bioindustries announced a manufacturing partnership with Dutch startup
\ivici to produce its precision-fermented dairy protein Vivitein™ BLG at Liberation Bioindustries Richmond facility from
2026.

Areconciliation of investment carrying amounts is as follows:

Investment 30June 2024  Capital Invested Sales  Realised fair Unrealised fair
£'000 value loss value gain/(loss)

£000 £'000

Al GFoods 7,911 - - - -
Blue Nalu Inc 12,855 - - - (5,240)
Bond Pets 738 - - - (708)
California Cultured 3,658 - - - -
2,037 - - - -

Unrealised fc

exchange gain/(



Clean Food Group 0,954 - - - -
EVERY Company 6,327 - - - -
Formo 9,308 - - - -
Galy Co 2,612 - - - -
Geltor Inc 253 - - (232)
Good Protein Fund 119 19 - - -
HydGene Renewables 1,318 - - - -
Laverock Therapeutics 48 - - - -
Liberation Bioindustries 25,870 7,523 - - (2,273)
Livekindley Inc 4,389 - - - -
Meatable BV 11,821 - - (11,915) -
Meatly 4,959 - - - (499)
Mosa Meat B.V. 3,099 - - - -
Onego Bio 10,964 - - - -
Seattle Food Tech, Inc. 348 - - - -
Solar Foods Oy 11,261 - (39) - (3,847)
SuperMeat 15,067 - - - -
Tropic Biosciences 2,373 - - - -
Limited

Umami Bioworks 382 - - - -
Wild Mcrobes 394 - - - (364)
Legacy Investments 48 - - - (23)
Total 145,143 7,542 (39) (11,915) (13,186)

Post Yearend Highlights:

24 July 2025 - Portfolio company Solar Foods, in partnership with Ajinomoto, launched Solein®-powered ice cream
at the World Aquatics Championships in Singapore under Ainomoto's Atir.72™ brand.

12 September 2025 - Portfolio company Clean Food Group Limited ("CFG") received approval for its CLEAN Oil ™
25 product to be used as a cosmetic ingredient in the United Kingdom, Europe, and the United States

23 September 2025 - Portfolio company Onego Bio received a U.S. Food and Drug Administration "No Questions"
Letter on GRAS Status of its flagship product, Bioalbumen®

30 September 2025 - Portfolio company Clean Food Group acquired the assets of Agal Omega 3 Ltd, providing
CFG with immediate access to one million litres of fermentation capacity, positioning CFG as one of the world's
largest manufacturers of yeast fermentation-derived sustainable oils and fats

On 19 December 2025, the Company announced that Meatable B.V. would enter voluntary liquidation. Following
this, the carmying amount Meatable has been fullyimpaired in these accounts.

On 19 December 2025, the Company announced that Liberation Bioindustries closed its first tranche of its Series
Al equity round.

During December 2025, the Company announced that Blue Nalu Inc completed a convertible promissory note and
preferred shares equityraise.

At 30 June 2025, the following investments are held by the Company, including the percentage of the net asset value
they represent:

Mosa Meat BV,

California Cultured
3%
Livekindley Inc
3%

Meatly / Good Dog Food
4% Liberation Bioindustries

Blue Nalu |
e SuperMeat the Essence of

Meat
11%

Clean Food Group

@




NV

Solar Onego Bio
9
Foods Oy
&% Richard Reed

Chair,
Investment
Committee

27 December 2025

Directors’ report

The Directors of Agronomics Limited (the "Company") take pleasure in presenting the Directors' report and financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Principal activity

Agronomics Limited is a Company domiciled in the Isle of Man. The Companys strategy is to create value for
Shareholders through investing in companies that operate in the nascent industry of cellular agriculture, which are
environmentally friendly alternatives to the traditional production of meat and plant-based sources.

Further details of the investing policy can be found on the Company's website at www.agronomics.im.

Results and transfer to reserves

The results and transfers to reserves for the year are set out on pages 23 and 25.

The Company recorded a net operating loss of £32,749,849 for the year (2024: net operating loss of £10,989,608) prior
to accounting for the fee due to Shellbay Investments Limited ("Shellbay"). During the year, as no Shellbay fee was due,
net operating loss remains at £32,749,849 (2024: net operating loss, after accounting for the Shellbay Fee, of
£10,989,608).

The net asset value per share at 30 June 2025 was 12.34 pence (2024: 15.58 pence).

Dividend

The Directors do not propose the payment of a dividend (2024: £nil).

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

Itis the policy of the Company to agree appropriate terms and conditions for its transactions with suppliers by means of
standard written terms to individually negotiated contracts. The Company seeks to ensure that payments are always
made in accordance with these terms and conditions.

Fnancial risks

Details relating to the financial risk management are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors who served during the year and to date were:

Jim Mellon Executive Chair

Denham Eke Executive Finance Director
Richard Reed Independent Non-Executive
David Giampaolo Independent Non-Executive
Marisa Drew Independent Non-Executive

Directors' interests

As at 30 June 2025, the interests of the Directors and their families (as such term is defined in the AM Rules for
Companies) in the share capital of the Company are as follows:

Ordinary shares
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Jim Mellon ! 158,117,002 152,287,421
Richard Reed 6,354,412 6,354,412
David Giampaolo 2,434,783 2,434,783
Denham Eke 2 1,551,824 1,551,824

1 - Galloway Limited, a company where Jim Mellon is considered to be the ultimate beneficial owner, holds 152,710,944 shares and 24,097 are held
l’\%'lsmllbay Investments Limited, companies which are both indirectly wholly owned by Jim Mellon, and 5,381,961 ordinary shares are held directly by M-
on.

2. Denham Eke is Managing Director of Galloway Limited.

Significant shareholdings

Except for the interests disclosed in this note, the Directors are not aware of any holding of ordinary shares as at 30
June 2025 representing 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Number of Percentage of total

ordinary shares issued capital
Jim Mellon 1 158,117,002 15.66%
Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) 134,417,194 13.32%
\idacos Nominees Limited 126,305,799 12.51%
Interactive Investor 77,097,761 7.64%
Interactive Brokers 58,772,759 5.82%
Lawshare Nominees Limited 42,010,297 4.16%
Morgan Stanley Client Securities 31,438,477 311%
Chase Nominees Limited 31,334,763 3.10%

HSDL Nominees Limited 31,023,318 3.07%



Note:

1 - Galloway Limited, a company where Jim Mellon is considered to be the ultimate beneficial owner, holds 152,710,944 shares and 24,097 are held
lSheIIbay Investments Limited, companies which are both indirectly wholly owned by Jim Mellon, and 5,381,961 ordinary shares are held directly by M
on.

Auditors
KPMG Audit LLC, being eligible, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
On behalf of the Board

Denham Eke
Finance Director
27 December 2025

1st Floor, Viking House
St Paul's Square
Ramsey, Isle of Man
IM8 1GB

Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Agronomics (the "Board") is committed to best practice in corporate governance throughout the Company.
The Directors have agreed to comply with the provisions of the Quoted Companies Aliance ("QCA") Corporate
Governance Code to the extent which is appropriate to its nature and scale of operations, and we are reporting against
the 2_0|23 version of the Code for the first time this year. This report illustrates how the Company complies with those
principles.

QCA Principle 1: Establish a purpose, strategy and business model which promotes long-term value for
shareholders

The purpose, strategy and business operations of the Company are set out in the Chair's Statement on pages 2 to 3.

The Companys purpose, strategy, business model and amendments thereto are developed by the Chair and their
senior management team and approved by the Board. The management team is responsible for implementing the
strategy and managing the business at an operational level.

The Company's overall strategic objective is to develop a profitable and sustainable platform for investing in the nascent
industry of modern foods, which are environmentally friendly alternatives to the traditional production of meat and plant-
based sources of nutrition.

In executing the Company's strategy and operational plans, management will typically confront a range of day-to-day
challenges associated with these key risks and uncertainties and will seek to deploy the identified mitigation steps to
manage these risks as they manifest themselves.

QCA Principle 2: Promote a corporate culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours

The Chair is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role, promoting a culture of
openness of debate, and communicating with the Companys members on behalf of the Board. The Chair sets the
direction of the Board and promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-
Executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Chair also
ensures that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. In doing so, this fosters a positive corporate
governance culture throughout the Company.

The Board seeks to maintain the highest standards of integrity and probity in the conduct of the Company's operations.
With the Company being a vehicle for holding investment, it has no employees and limited capacity to effect changes in
culture in companies it is affiliated with. However, the Board will strive fo ensure that the Companies in which it has an
interestin, act ethically.

The Board ensures that all portfolio companies have policies in place to comply with applicable governance laws and
regulations, such as anti-bribery and modern-day slavery.

The Board has a zero-tolerance approach to breaches of these laws and regulations. The Board promotes ethical
behaviour throughout the portfolio, through directions to the Companys investment advisors in relation to the ethical
management of the portfolio.

QCA Principle 3: Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs and expectations

The Company via the Chair seeks to maintain a regular dialogue with both existing and potential new shareholders in
order to communicate the Company's strategy and progress and to understand the needs and expectations of
shareholders.

Beyond the Annual General Meeting, the Chair and, where appropriate, other members of the senior management team
or Board will meet with investors and analysts to provide them with updates on the Company's business and to obtain
feedback regarding the market's expectations of the Company.

The Company's investor relations activities encompass dialogue with both institutional and private investors. From time
to time, the Company attends private investor events, providing an opportunity for those investors to meet with
representatives from the Companyin a more informal setting.

The Company has duly considered investor feedback and has undertaken a number of enhancements to its website
throughout 2025. It is committed to continually soliciting and responding to feedback in order to improve shareholder
engagement across all communication channels.

QCA Principle 4: Take into account wider stakeholder interests, including social and environmental
responsibilities, and their implications for long-term success

The Company is aware of its social and environmental responsibilities and the need to maintain effective working
relationships across a range of stakeholders. These include the Companys advisors, suppliers, and investee
companies. The Company's operations and working methodologies take account of the need to balance the needs of
all these stakeholders while maintaining focus on the Board's primary responsibility to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. The Company endeavours to take account of feedback received
from stakeholders, and where appropriate, ensures any amendments are consistent with the Companys longer-term
strategy.

ThA CAamnanitalblac Aiia annanint Af Anvirmnant Hhat ite Aantivitine mau haun Al Hha AnviranmAant AanAd ceAnle ta minimicA
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this impact wherever possible.

The Company does not currently maintain environmental or social KPI's because its operations are limited solely to
investment activities, with no material direct footprint. The Company will, however, continue to monitor governance
developments and will consider introducing KPI's where they become relevant, meaningful, and contribute to effective
performance monitoring and decision-making.

QCA Principle 5: Embed effective risk management, internal controls and assurance activities, considering both
opportunities and threats, throughout the organisation

The Board is responsible for the systems of risk management (including climate-related risk) and internal control and
for reviewing their effectiveness. Internal controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Through the activities of the Company
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, the effectiveness of these internal controls is reviewed annually.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee has actively monitored auditor independence throughout the year. This
included reviewing the auditor's engagement terms, audit and non-audit fees and the safeguards in place to prevent
conflicts of interest. The committee is satisfied that its auditor remains objective, independent and professionally
sceptical. Acomprehensive budgeting process is completed once a year and is reviewed and approved by the Board.
The Company's results, compared with the budget, are reported to the Board on a monthly basis.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of actions taken against the Directors because of their
roles, as well as against material loss or claims against the Company. The insured values and type of cover are
comprehensively reviewed on a periodic basis.

The senior management team meets at least monthly to consider new risks and opportunities presented to the
Company, making recommendations to the Board and/or Company Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee as
appropriate.

QCA Principle 6: Establish and maintain the board as a well-functioning, balanced team led by the chair
The Company's Board currently comprises three Non-executive Directors and two Executive Directors.

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for the proper management of the Company and intends to meet at least
four times a year to set the owerall direction and strategy of the Company, to review operational and financial
performance and to advise on management appointments. All key operational decisions are subject to Board approval.

Richard Reed, David Giampaolo and Marisa Drew, all Non-executive Directors, are considered to be independent. The
QCA Code suggests that a board should hawve at least two independent Non-executive Directors. The Board considers
that the current composition and structure of the Board of Directors is appropriate to maintain effective oversight of the
Companys activities for the time being.

Non-executive Directors receive their fees in the form of a basic cash emolument. The current remuneration structure for
the Board's Executive and Non-executive Directors is deemed to be proportionate.

The Role of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the organisation. Its principal function is to determine
the strategy and policies of the Company within an effective control framework which enables risk to be assessed and
managed.

The Board ensures that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its
objectives and that business and management performance is reviewed. Furthermore, the Board ensures that the
Company operates within its constitution, relevant legislation and regulation and that proper accounting records and
effective systems of business control are established, maintained, documented, and audited.

There are at least four formal Board meetings each year. Al Board members have the benefit, at the Companys
expense, of liability insurance in respect of their responsibilities as Directors and have access to independent legal or
other professional advice if required. The Board has a formal schedule of matters which are reserved for its
consideration, and it has established three committees to consider specific issues in greater detail, being the Company
Audit, Risk and Compliance, Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Terms of Reference for each of these
Committees are published on the Company's website.

The Chair

The Chair is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role, promoting a culture of
openness of debate, and communicating with the Companys members on behalf of the Board. The Chair sets the
direction of the Board and promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-
executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive Directors. The Chair also
ensures that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. In doing so, this fosters a positive corporate
governance culture throughout the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer
At present, the Company does not have a Chief Executive Officer. Instead, the responsibility for managing the
Company's business and operations within the parameters set by the Board is held by the Finance Director.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors are responsible for bringing independent judgement to the discussions held by the Board,
using their breadth of experience and understanding of the business. Their key responsibilities are to constructively
challenge and contribute to strategic proposals, and to monitor performance, resources, and standards of conduct,
compliance and control, whilst providing support to executive management in developing the Company.

The Board has established a Company Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee ("ARCC"), a Remuneration Committee
and a Nominations Committee with formally delegated duties and responsibilities. Richard Reed chairs the ARCC, Jim
Mellon chairs the Remuneration Committee, and the Nominations Committee is chaired by Richard Reed and
comprised of the whole board.

Company Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

The Company Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee meets at least two times each year, and is chaired by Richard
Reed. The external auditors attend by invitation. Its role is to be responsible for reviewing the integrity of the financial
statements and the balance of information disclosed in the accompanying Directors' Report, to review the effectiveness
of internal controls and risk management systems and recommend to the Board (for approval by the members) the
appointment or re-appointment of the external auditor. The ARCC reviews and monitors the external auditor's objectivity,
competence, effectiveness and independence, ensuring that if it or its associates are invited to undertake non-audit
work it will not compromise auditor objectivity and independence.

Further information can be found within the Company Audit, Risk and Compliance Report contained within this Annual
Report.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee intends to meet at least once a year and comprises of two Non-executive Directors and
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Director, the Company Secretary and other members of the management. Committee members do not take part in
discussions concerning their own remuneration.

Further information can be found within the Remuneration Report contained within this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is comprised of the whole Board. It is chaired by the Chair of the Board and is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the composition of the Board, including Executive and
Non-executive Director succession planning, the appointment of new Directors and the election and re-election of
Directors. The Nomination Committee only meets as matters arise.

Appointments to the Board

The principal purpose of the Nomination Committee is to undertake an assessment of the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge on the Board against the requirements of the business, with a view to determining
whether any shortages exist. Having completed the assessment, the Committee makes recommendations to the Board
accordingly. Appointments to the Board are made on merit, with due regard to the benefits of diversity. Within this

context, the paramount objective is the selection of the best candidate, irrespective of background, and it is the view of
the Board that establishing quotas or targets for the diversity of the Board is not appropriate.

Al Director appointments must be approved by the Companys Nominated Adviser, as required under the AM Rules,
before they are appointed to the Board.

Prior to appointment, Non-executive Directors are required to demonstrate that they are able to allocate sufficient time to
undertake their duties.

Re-election
All of the Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment to
the Board. Directors are submitted for re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

Board and committee attendance

The number of formal scheduled Board and committee meetings held and attended by Directors during the year was as
follows: -

Board ARCC Nomination Remuneration

Richard Reed 6/10 2/2 - -
David Giampaolo 8/10 22 - -
Jim Mellon 10/10 - - -
Denham Eke 1010 22 - -
Marisa Drew 10/10 - - -

QCA Principle 7: Maintain appropriate governance structures and ensure that individually and collectively the
Directors have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills, and capabilities

The Board considers that the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors are of sufficient competence and calibre
to add strength and objectivity to its activities and bring considerable experience in the operational and financial
development of the Company.

The Directors' biographies are detailed on the Company's website www.agronomics.im.

The Board regularly reviews the composition of the Board to ensure that it has the necessary breadth and depth of skills
to support the ongoing development of the Company.

The Chair, in conjunction with the Finance Director, ensures that the Directors' knowledge is kept up to date on key
issues and developments pertaining to the Company; its operational environment and to the Directors' responsibilities
as members of the Board. During the course of the year, Directors received updates from the Finance Director and
various external advisers on a number of corporate governance matters.

The Nominated Adviser for the Company is invited to attend a board meeting each year to provide the Board with
updates regarding AIM regulatory requirements, disclosure obligations and any developments that may affect the
Company's ongoing compliance.

Directors' senice contracts or appointment letters make provision for a Director to seek professional advice in
furtherance of his or her duties and responsibilities, normally via the Company Secretary.

QCA Principle 8: Evaluate board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

Internal evaluation of the Board, the Committees and individual Directors is undertaken on an annual basis in the form
of peer appraisal and discussions to determine their effectiveness and performance as well as the Directors' continued
independence.

The results and recommendations that come out of the appraisals for the Directors shall identify the key corporate and
financial targets that are relevant to each Director and their personal targets in terms of career development and
training. Progress against previous targets is also assessed where relevant.

The Board will assess the need for an externally facilitated evaluation, as required by the new QCA Code.

The Board recognises the importance of effective succession planning to maintain strong leadership and good
gowvernance. While there are currently no planned changes to the Board's composition, future needs are kept under
continual review. As the Company evolves, the Board will ensure that future appointments support the Company's long-
term strategy, provide the necessary skills and experience, and uphold high standards of independence and diversity of
perspective.

QCA Principle 9: Establish a remuneration policy which is supportive of long-term value creation and the
Company's purpose, strategy and culture

The Remuneration Committee intends to meet at least once a year and comprises of two Non-executive Directors and
one Executive Director. It is chaired by Jim Mellon and is responsible for determining the remuneration of the Executive
Director, the Company Secretary and other members of the management. Committee members do not take part in
discussions conceming their own remuneration.

The Board, with the assistance of the Companys Remuneration Committee and external advisors, ensures that the
remuneration policyis structured to promote long-term value creation and align with the Company's purpose, strategy,
and culture. In accordance with the new QCA Code, we will present the Directors' Remuneration Policy and Directors’
Remuneration Report for an advisory shareholder vote at the 2026 Annual General Meeting.

QCA Principle 10: Communicate how the company is governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant stakeholders



The Company places a high priority on regular communications with its various stakeholders and aims to ensure that
all communications concerning the Companys activities are clear, fair, and accurate. The Companys website is

regularly updated, and users can register to be alerted when announcements or details of presentations and events are
posted onto the website.

Notices of General Meetings of the Company can be found here: https:/agronomics.im/latest-news/.

The results of voting on all resolutions in general meetings are posted to the Company's website, including any actions
to be taken as a result of resolutions for which wotes against have been received from at least 20 per cent of
independent shareholders.

Approval

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 27 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Denham Eke
Fnance Director

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Report

The Directors ensure the Company complies with the provisions of the Quoted Companies Alliance ("QCA") Corporate
Governance Code (2023) to the extent which is appropriate to its nature and scale of operations.

This report illustrates how the Company complies with those principles in relation to its Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee (the "ARCC").

Membership

The Committee comprises of two Non-Executive Directors, Richard Reed and David Giampaolo, and one Executive
Director, being Denham Eke. The composition of the Committee has been reviewed during the year, and the Board is
satisfied that the Committee members have the relevant financial experience and the expertise to resource and fulfil its
responsibilities effectively, including those relating to risk and controls.

Meetings

The Committee meets two times a year, including the review of the interim and full year results. Other Directors and
representatives from the external auditors attend by invitation.

Duties

The Committee carries out the duties below for the Company, as appropriate:

§ Monitors the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, including annual and half-yearly reports, interim
management statements, and any other formal announcement relating to financial performance, reviewing
significant financial reporting issues and judgements which they contain.

§ Reviews and challenges the consistency of the information presented within the financial statements, compliance
with stock exchange or other legal requirements, accounting policies and the methods used to account for
significant or unusual transactions.

§ Keeps under review the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls and risk management systems.

§ KPMG Audit LLC was appointed as auditor in 2011 and the ARCC will oversee the relationship with them including
meetings when considered appropriate to discuss their remit and review the findings and any issues with the
annual audit. It will also review their terms of appointment and plans to meet them once a year independent of
management and will consider and make recommendations to the Board, to be put to the Company for approval at
the Annual General Meeting, in relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Company's external
auditor. There are no contractual restrictions in place in respect of the auditor choice.

§ The Committee is governed by a Terms of Reference and a copy of this is available on the Company's website.

2025 Annual Report
During the year, ARCC confirms that it has received sufficient, reliable and timely information from management and the
external auditors to enable it to fulfil its responsibilities.

The Committee has satisfied itself that there are no relationships between the auditor and the Company which could
adwersely affect the auditor's independence and objectivity.

All internal control and risk issues that have been brought to the attention of ARCC by the external auditors have been
considered and the Committee confirms that it is satisfied that management has addressed the issues or has plans to
do so.

The Company has a number of policies and procedures in place as part of its internal controls, and these are subject to
continuous review and as a minimum are reviewed by ARCC on an annual basis.

KPMG Audit LLC, being eligible, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

ARCC has reviewed and discussed together with management and the external auditor the Companys financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 and reports from the external auditor on the planning for and outcome of
their reviews and audit. The key accounting issues and judgements considered relating to the Companys financial
statements and disclosures were as follows:

§ Valuation of unquoted investments £120,988,477;
§ Going concern - ARCC reviewed the going concern position of the Company, taking into account the 12-month cash
flow forecasts. ARCC is satisfied that preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis is appropriate.

Richard Reed
Chair ARCC
27 December 2025

Report of the Remuneration Committee

As an Isle of Man registered company there is no requirement to produce a Directors' Remuneration Report. However,



the Board follows best practice and therefore has prepared such a report.

The Directors have agreed to comply with the provisions of the Quoted Companies Aliance ("QCA') Corporate
Governance Code (2023) to the extent which is appropriate to its nature and scale of operations.

This report illustrates how the Company complies with those principles in relation to directors' remuneration.
The Level and Components of Non-Executive Directors Remuneration

The Remuneration Policy reflects the Company's business strategy and objectives as well as sustained and long-term
value creation for shareholders. In addition, the policy aims to be fair and provide equality of opportunity, ensuring that:

§ the Companyis able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated people in the competitive local and
wider markets;

§ The Company offers a competitive remuneration package to encourage enhanced performance and rewards
individual contributions to the success of the Company, in a fair and responsible manner;

§ itreflects the Company's culture and values; and
§ there is full transparency of the Remuneration Policy.

In line with the Board's approach, which reflects that adopted within other comparable organisations, the Remuneration
Policy provides for the reward of the Non-Executive Directors through fees and other benefits.

Non-Executive Directors Emoluments

The remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors reflects their responsibilities. It comprises fees and may include
eligibility to participate in an annual bonus scheme, private healthcare and share option incentives, when any of these
are considered appropriate.

Annual bonus scheme payments are not pensionable and are not contracted.
Non-executive Directors’ Remuneration

Non-executive Directors do not receive any benefits other than their fees and travelling expenses for which they are
reimbursed. The lewvel of fees payable to Non-executive Directors is assessed using benchmarks from a group of
comparable organisations.

Executive Directors Remuneration

Executive Directors do not receive any benefits other than their fees and travelling expenses for which they are
reimbursed. The level of fees payable to Executive Directors is assessed using benchmarks from a group of
comparable organisations.

The Committee believes that share ownership by executives strengthens the link between their personal interests and
those of shareholders. Options will be granted to executives periodically at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee. The grant of share options is not subject to fixed performance criteria. This is deemed to be appropriate as
it allows the Committee to consider the performance of the executives and the contribution of the individual executives
and, as with annual bonus payments, illustrates the relative importance placed on performance-related remuneration.

Except when required by statute, the Company does not intend to contribute to the personal pension plans of Directors
in the forthcoming year.

Executive Directors' Contractual Terms
The senice contract of the Executive Directors provides for a notice period of sixmonths.

The Procedure for Determining Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee, comprising two Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, is responsible for
sefting the remuneration of the Executive Directors and is chaired by Jim Mellon. Committee members do not take part
in discussions concerning their own remuneration. The basic Non-executive Director fee is set by the Chair. The Chair
of the Committee reports at the Board meeting following a Committee meeting.

It is the view of the Committee that Directors' remuneration awarded across the Company for the year has been in
accordance with the Company's stated Remuneration Policy and, on behalf of the Committee | recommend that you
endorse this report. An analysis of Directors' emoluments is as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

Emoluments - salaries, bonuses, and taxable benefits - -
-fees 150,000 153,750

150,000 153,750

Directors' Emoluments

Termination 2025 2024
Fees Bonus payments Benefits Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive - salary

Denham Eke ** - - - - - -
Jim Mellon* 40,000 - - - 40,000 38,750

Non-executive - fees - - -
Richard Reed 30,000 - - - 30,000 35,000
David Giampaolo 30,000 - - - 30,000 30,000
Marisa Drew 50,000 - - - 50,000 50,000
Aggregate emoluments 150,000 - - - 150,000 153,750

* In addition to director fees, further emoluments are subject to an agreement with Shellbay Investments Limited ("Shellbay"), whereby Shellbay shall be
entitled to an annual fee equal to the value of 15% of any increase between the Company's net asset value ("NAV") on a per issued share basis at the
start of a reporting period and 30 June each year during the term of the New Shellbay Agreement (please see Note 2 to the Accounts).

** Denham Eke was appointed as a Director on 30 May 2012 and currently receives no remuneration for providing his services (refer note 11).



Approval
The report was approved by the Board of directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Jim Mellon
Chair of Remuneration Committee
27 December 2025

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect of the Directors' Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
applicable to an Isle of Man company and applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of its profit or loss for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs;

assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and

use the going concemn basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Isle of Man Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the Companys website. Legislation in the Isle of Man governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Report of the Independent Auditors, KPMG Audit LLC, to the members of Agronomics Limited

Our opinion is unmodified

We hawe audited the financial statements of Agronomics Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2025, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
ﬂof(m)/s f?r the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the Company's loss
for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable

law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We hawe fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are

independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical retwirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as

]gopphed to listed entities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
I our opinion.

Key audit matters: our assessment of the risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or
not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In amiving at our audit opinion abowe, the key
audit matter was as follows (unchanged from 2024):




Valuation of unquoted
investments (including investment
in subsidiary and other unquoted
investments held)

2025: £121,009,941
£145,43,166)

Refer to Page 14 for Audit, Risk
and  Compliance  Committee
Report, note 1(b) (use of estimates
and judgement), 1(Id) (accountin

policy for financial instrumentsﬁ
and note 9 (fair value of financia
instruments) disclosures

(2024:

Subjective Valuation:

The Company's investment in
subsidiary Is stated at fair value of
£105,683,744 2024:
£136,953,040). The underlying
portfolio of investments held by the
subsidiary comprises the entirety
of its net assets. The Company
also holds unquoted investments
directly amounting to £15,304,733
(2024: £8,146,774).

97% (2024: 9R2%) of the
Compar&y's total assets (by value)
are held in investments where no
quoted market price is available.
Unquoted investments held directly
by the Company, and indirectly
through the underlying portfolio in
its subsidiary, are measured at fair
value, which is established in
accordance with the Interational
Private Equité/ and Venture Capital
Valuation Guidelines by using
measurements of value such as
comparison with prices of recent

orderl transactions, where
available, requires the use of
significant judgments and

subjective assumptions.

The preparation of the fair value
estimate for the  unquoted
investments and related
disclosures is a significant area of
our audit given that it represents a
significant’  portion  of  the
Company's total assets and
involves * the use of significant
judgments and subjective
assumptions.

The effect of these matters is that
as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of
unquoted investments has a high
de%ree of estimation uncertainty,
wit] a potential range of
reasonable outcomes greater than
our materiality for the financial
statements as a whole and
possibly many times that amount.

Our audit procedures included:

Internal Controls:

Assessin the design and
implementation of the investment
valuation controls.

Test of Detail:

Auditing the accounts of the
subsidiary as part of the audit of
the Company, Including assessing
the accounting policies adopted by
the subsidiary to ensure these are
consistent with the Company's
accounting policies. In particular,
ensuring that the portfolio of
investments held by the subsidiary
is stated at fair value and ensuring
net asset value of the subsidiary
represents fair value.

Challenging managements’
assumptions and inputs:

Challenging the directors on key
judgments  affecting  investee
company valuations, such as the
achievement of key milestones or
potential dilution impacts of recent
transactions. Our work included
consideration of ewents which
occurred subsequent to the year
end up until the date of this report.

Assessing observable inputs:

Where a recent transaction has
been used as a basis to value a

holding, we  obtaned an
understanding of the
circumstances surrounding  the

transaction such as whether it was
considered to be on an arms-
length basis and suitable as an
input into a valuation.

Methodology choice:

In the context of obsened industry
best practice and the provisions of
the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital Valuation
Guidelines, we assessed the
appropriateness of the valuation
basis selected.

Assessing disclosures:
Consideration _of the
appropriateness, in  accordance

with relevant accounting standards,
of the disclosures in respect of
unquoted investments and the
significant  inherent  uncertaint
associated with valuing suc
investments.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £1,140,000 (2024: £1,320,000), determined with
Beg%;e)nce to a benchmark of total assets of £124,668,535, of which it represents approximately 0.9% (2024:
. 0).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were

rformed to a lower threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable lewel the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the
financial statements as a whole. Performance materiality for the Company was set at 65% (2024: 65%2 of
materiality for the financial statements as a whole, which equates to £741,000 (2024: £858,000). We applied this
pFrc?rétg e i||1 %ur ?(etennination of performance materiality because we did not identify any factors indicating an
elevated lewel of risk.

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £57,000
(2024 £66,000), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materiality level specified above, which has informed our
identification of significant risks of material misstatement and the associated audit procedures performed in those
areas as detailed abowe.

Going concem

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concem basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they hawe concluded that the Company's financial
ﬁosition means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could

ave cast significant doubt ower its ability to continue as a %omg concem for at least a year from the date of
aoproval of thefinancial statements (the "acina concem period™.
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In our evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company's business model
and analysed how those risks might affect the Company's financial resources or abilit¥ to continue operations
ower the going concem period. The risks that we considered most likely to affect the Company's financial
resources or ability to continue operations over this period were:

Availability of capital to meet operating costs and other financial commitments; and
The recowerability of financial assets subject to credit risk.

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the Iicluidity of the Com?any in the going concem
period by compan'n? sewere, but plausible downside scenarios that could arise from these risks individually and
collectively against the level of available financial resources indicated by the Company's financial forecasts.

We considered whether the going concem disclosure in note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and
accurate description of the directors' assessment of going concem.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors' use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;
we hawe not identified, and concur with the directors' assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem for the going concemn period; and
we found the going concem disclosure in the notes to the financial statements to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot_ Fredict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with Jucégoements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions
are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks") we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
procedures included:

enquiring of management as to the Company's policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud as well
as enquiring whether management have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
reading minutes of meetings of those charged with goverance; and
using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account sible incentives or pressures to misstate
performance and our overall knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of
management owerride of controls, In particular the risk that management may be in a position to make
inappropriate accounting entries, and the risk of bias in accounting estimates such as valuation of unquoted
investments. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the
Company's revenue streams are simple in nature with respect to accounting policy choice, and are easil
erifiable to external data sources or agreements with little or no requirement for estimation from management.
We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:

identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing any identified
entries to supporting documentation;
incorporating an element of unpredictability in our audit procedures; and
assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Furtrrmter detail in respect of valuation of unquoted investments is set out in the key audit matter section of this
report.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with management (as required by
auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company's regulatory and legal correspondence, if any, and
discussed with management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. As the
Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the control environment
including the entity's procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

The Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

The Company is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could hawe a
material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation or impacts on the Company's ability to operate. We identified financial senices regulation as being
the area most likely to have such an effect, recognising the regulated nature of the Company's activities and its
legal form. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of management and inspection of regulatory and Ie%al correspondence, if any. Therefore if a
gr?acptﬂf ? rati(r)]na regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not
etect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unawoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remains a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as this may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the owerride of intemal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annnal renart hit dnes nnt incliide the financial statementae and niir anditar's rennrt therean  Oiir anininn Nn
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the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we hawe
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We hawe nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 18, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of

the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem; and using the going concem basis of accounting

3nless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or hawe no realistic alterative but to
o so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is proided on the FRCs website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of this report and restrictions on its use by persons other than the Company's members, as a body

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 80(C) of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mlght state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

KPMG Audit LLC

Chartered Accountants

Heritage Court

41 Athol Street

Douglas

Isle of Man IM1 1LA

29 December 2025

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2025

2025 2024
Note £ £

Income

Net loss from financial instruments at fair value through profit or 3 (25,103,164) (8,342,317)
loss

(25,103,164) (8,342,317)
Operating expenses
Directors' fees 2 (150,000 (153,750
Other operating costs 4 (1,219,591 (1,524,949
Foreign exchange losses (7,743,900) (2,143,477)
Loss from operating activities 5 (34,216,655) (12,164,493)

Other costs
Consulting fee 2 - -

Loss before other income (34,216,655) (12,164,493)

Other income
Interestincome 1,466,806 1,174,885

Loss before taxation (32,749,849) (10,989,608)
Taxation 1(h) - -

Loss for the year (32,749,849) (10,989,608)
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (32,749,849) (10,989,608)

Basic loss per share (pence) 2 (324) (110)



Diluted loss per share (pence)

12

The Directors consider that the Company’s activities are continuing.

Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2025

Note
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 78,9
Bank deposits
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 6

Share premium 6
Accumulated earnings

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 10
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

2025
£

121,009,941

52,407
3,606.187

124,668,535

1,008
136,171,079
(11,651,152)
124,520,935

147,600

147,600

124,668,535

(3.24)

2024
£

145,143,166
9,107,996
56,979
3,127,096

(1.10)

157,435,237

1,008
136,169,365
21,098,697

157,269,070

166,167

166,167

157,435,237

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 December 2025 and were signed on their

behalf by:

Denham Eke
Finance Director

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2025
Note Share Share Share Accumulated
capital premium reserve earnings Total
£ £ £ £ £
Balance at 30 June 2023 6 992 134,481,365 1,686,336 32,088,305 168,256,998
Total comprehensive loss for the
year
Loss for the year - - - (10,989,608) (10,989,608)
Transactions with owners of the
company
Shares issued during the year 6 16 1,688,000 (1,686,336) - 1,680
Balance at 30 June 2024 6 1,008 136,169,365 - 21,098,697 157,269,070
Note Share Share Accumulated
capital premium earnings Total
£ £ £ £
Balance at 30 June 2024 6 1,008 136,169,365 21,098,697 157,269,070
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year - - (32,749,849) (32,749,849)
Transactions with owners of the
company
Shares issued during the year 6 - 1,714 - 1,714
Balance at 30 June 2025 6 1,008 136,171,079 (11,651,152) 124,520,935
Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 30 June 2025



2025 2024
£ £

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating loss for the year (32,749,849) (10,989,608)
Purchase of investments 8 (7,542,971) (13,472,336)
Proceeds from sale of investments 28,341 -
Interestincome (1,466,806)  (1,174,885)
Realised and unrealised gains on investments 3 25,103,164 8,342,317
Unrealised foreign exchange losses on investments 8 7,666,192 2,082,826
Cash interest received 345,305 852,208
Operating cashflows before changes in working capital (8,616,624) (14,359,478)
Change in trade and other receivables 4,571 278,832
Change in trade and other payables 10 (18,566)  (1,779,926)
Net cash used in operating activities (8,630,619) (15,860,572)
Cash flows from investing activities

Bank deposits not considered cash and cash equivalents 9,107,996 892,004
Net cash from investing activities 9,107,996 892,004
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 1,714 1,680
Net cash from financing activities 1,714 1,680
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 479,091 (14,966,888)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,127,096 18,093,984
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 3,606,187 3,127,096

Notes

(forming an integral part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025)

1

Accounting policies

Agronomics Limited is a London AIMlisted Company domiciled in the Isle of Man. The Company's strategy is to
create value for Shareholders through investing in companies that operate in the nascent industry of modemn
foods, which are environmentally friendly alternatives to the traditional production of meat and plant-based
sources. Refer to Page 1 for corporate information.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") as issued by the IASB. There has been no material impact on the financial statements of new
standards/interpretations that have come into effect during the current year.

b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except where assets and liabilities
are required to be stated at their fair value.

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by the Directors in the application of IFRS, that have a significant impact on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial year relate to
valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The determination of fair values for financial
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techniques as described in accounting policy 1(d). For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little
price transparency, fair value is less objective and requires varying degrees of judgement and estimation
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting
the specific instrument. The portfolio companies are all in the start-up/development stage and in the
biotechnology and biopharmaceutical sector. By their nature, such companies are difficult to value, as they have
little or no track record regarding sales and margins and may be subject to continued funding being available in
order to continue in operation. The eventual outcome may differ materially from the value estimate. See also note
8 in respect of the valuation of financial instruments.

Going concem

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, taking into consideration the level of
cash and liquid investments held by the Company. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will have adequate resources for its continuing existence and projected activities for the foreseeable
future, and for these reasons, continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2025.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling (£) which is the Company's functional currency and
rounded to the nearest pound.

c) Net income from financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss

Any realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are presented within 'net income from financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss'.

Interest income earmned from bank deposits is not classified as operating income as itis not a return eamed from
the Companys investment policy and objectives and therefore is presented as Other Income. Interest income
earned from loan investments is classified as operating income, as this is income eamed in line with the
Companys investment policy and objectives.

d) Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement
The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on the trade date, which is the date
on which the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or
financial liabilityis measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest ("SPPI").
All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FVTPL.

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Company
conS|ders all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategyin practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of anyrelated liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the companys continuing recognition of the assets.
The Company has determined that it has two business models.

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits. These financial
assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

Other business model: this includes debt securities, equity investments both quoted and unquoted. These
financial assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis.



Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of investment holdings of listed investments is based on their quoted market prices at the reporting
date on a recognised exchange or in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, sourced from a reputable
counterparty, without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at their closing
bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at their closing offer prices.

Company assets may, at any time include securities and other financial instruments or obligations that are thinly
traded or for which no market exists and/or which are restricted as to their transferability under securities laws.

If a quoted market price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, or a market is not sufficiently active for
the market price to be considered reliable, or if a price is not available from a reputable counterparty, fair value of
the financial instruments may be estimated by the Directors using valuation techniques, including use of recent
arm's length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation technique that provides a
reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market fransactions.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
during which the change occurred.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company were to change
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets would be
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Impairment
The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the consideration received (including any
new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such
Itralr)\?ferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or
iability.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months or less
from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in fair value.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables originated by the Company are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated atamortised cost less impairment losses.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value less directly aftributable transaction costs.
Subsequently they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

e) Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The ordinary shares of the Company have a par value of £0.000001
each. Excess proceeds received for the issue of shares has been credited to share premium. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

f) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign exchange currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss and presented as foreign exchange gains /
(losses).

g) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Anumber of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year, and
have not been applied in preparing these historical financial statements:

Newl/revised International Accounting Standards / International Financial IFRS Effective date

Reporting Standards ("IAS/IFRS") (accounting periods
commencing on or after)

Lack of exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21) The effects of Changes 1 January 2025

in Foreign Currency

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial 1 January 2026

Instruments - Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Anendments to: 1 January 2026

*IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Interational Financial Reporting Standards;
*IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7,

*IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

*IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

*|AS 7 Statement of Cash flows

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures™ 1 January 2027




The Directors do not expect the adoption of the standards and interpretations to have a material impact on the
financial statements in the period of initial application, except for IFRS 18, where the Directors are assessing the
impact. There are no other standards, amendments or interpretations to exsting standards that are not yet
effective, that would have a material impact on the Company's reported results.

There has been no material impact on the Company's financial statements of new standards or interpretations
that have come into effect during the current reporting period.

h) Taxation

The Company is subject to income tax at a rate of 0% in the Isle of Man, and accordingly, no tax has been
provided for in these financial statements.

The Company may be subject to withholding taxes in relation to income from investments, or investment
realisation proceeds or gains, and such amounts will be accounted for as incurred.

i) Segmental reporting

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is engaged in a single segment of business, being investing
in companies that operate in the nascent industry of modemn foods, which are environmentally friendly
alternatives to the traditional production of meat and plant-based sources. Information presented to the Board of
Directors for the purpose of decision making is based on this single segment and in accordance with IFRS.

Jj) Investment entity

The Company is an investment entity and measures investments in its subsidiaries at FVTPL. In determining
whether the Company meets the definition of an investment entity management considered the Company
structure as a whole. In particular, when assessing the existence of investment exit strategies and whether the
Company or its subsidiary has more than one investment, management took into consideration the fact that the
subsidiary was formed in order to hold investments on behalf of the Company. Management concluded that the
Company and the subsidiary each meet the definition of an investment entity Consequently, management
concluded that the Company should not consolidate the subsidiary.

Directors' and consulting fees

The fees of Directors who served during the year ended 30 June 2025 were as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

Richard Reed 30,000 35,000
David Giampaolo 30,000 30,000
Jim Mellon 40,000 38,750
Marisa Drew 50,000 50,000
150,000 153,750

Denham Eke was appointed as a Director on 30 May 2012 and currently receives no remuneration for providing
his senvices (refer note 11).

On 6 May 2011, Shellbay Investments Limited ("Shellbay") entered into a Letter of Appointment with the Company
to provide certain senices to Agronomics. In May 2021, following shareholder feedback and in consultation with
the Companys advisers, the terms of this agreement were altered, on the basis that from May 2021 new
arrangements would be put in place to (i) ensure the terms of Shellbays appointment were consistent with
market standard terms for commensurate senvices; (ii) provide greater transparency and corporate governance
regarding the role of Shellbay; and (iii) establish a remuneration structure fully aligned with shareholders, and
acceptable to existing and future investors. The effective date for the updated agreementis 01 July 2020.

Under the updated terms, Shellbay will provide certain senvices to Agronomics, including:

- Reviewing prospective asset purchases;

- Procuring and coordinating due diligence in relation to any target approved by the Company;,

- Providing appropriate information to the Board in relation to any proposed acquisition or disposal
opportunity;

- Providing transaction support senices as requested by the Company;,

- Assisting in operating, developing and commercialising any intellectual property and/or assets of the
Company (including by way of joint venture, licensing agreement or other partnership);

- Deweloping new markets and/or territories for assets and/or intellectual property owned by the Company
(including by way of manufacturing, distribution and/or branding partnerships);

- Supplying the Board with regular reports on the progress of companies and intellectual property where the
Company has an interest (including anyfinancings);

- Assisting with recruitment of management teams and operational supply chain partners for relevant
products and intellectual property; and

- The senvices of Jim Mellon as Executive Director of the Company.

Shellbay shall be entitled to an annual fee equal to the value of 15% of any increase between the Company's net
asset value ("NAV') on a per issued share basis at the start of a reporting period and 30 June ("Closing NAV
Date") each year during the term of the New Shellbay Agreement, with the first reporting period being from 1 July
2020 to 30 June 2021, and annually thereafter. The opening and closing NAV for each period will be based on the
audited financial statements of the Company for the relevant financial year, with the opening NAV for each
reporting period being the higher of (i) 5.86 pence per share (the highest annual audited NAV per share since the
Company adopted its current investment policy and reported NAV per share in September 2019)), and (ii) the
highest NAV per share reported at a Closing Date for the previous reporting periods during the term of the
agreement (establishing a rolling high-watermark for Shellbay to qualify for such fee). Any increase in NAV per
share will then be applied to the total issued share capital at the end of the relevant period for the purposes of
determining the 15% fee.

Any change in NAV per share that arises from funds raised at a premium or discount to the existing NAV per
share will therefore be considered for the purposes of calculating Shellbays fee by reference to the annual
audited accounts (for clarity being an increase in respect of a premium and a decrease in respect of a discount).

At the election of the Company, the Shellbay fee shall be payable either in whole or in part by the issue of new
shares at a price equal to the mid-price on the last day of the relevant Qualifying Period (being the Companys
accounting year from 1 July to 30 June) or grant of nil price warrants over shares; or in cash; or (with the
agreement of Shellbay), in cash-equivalents (such as shares), and other assets held by the Company.

For the year ended 30 June 2025, no Shellbay fee was due (2024: £Nil).



Net gain/(loss) from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Derived from financial assets held mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition:

2025 2024
£ £
Realised losses on investments (11,915,163) -
Unrealised gains on investments 988 6,865,234
Unrealised losses on investments (13,188,989) (15,207,551)
Net unrealised loss on investments (13,188,001) (8,342,317)
Net loss from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (25,103,164) (8,342,317)
Other operating costs
2025 2024
£ £
Auditors' fees 66,000 64,000
Marketing 204,237 182,797
Professional fees 279,526 518,839
Sundry expenses 669,828 759,313
1,219,591 1,524,949
The Company has no employees.
(Loss)/profit from operating activities
(Loss)/profit from operating activities is stated after charging:
2025 2024
£ £
Auditors' fees 66,000 64,000

Directors' fees 150,000 153,750

Share capital, share premium and share reserve
Each share in the Company confers upon the shareholder:

- the right to one vote at a meeting of the shareholders or on any resolution of shareholders;
- the right to an equal share in any dividend paid by the Company, and
- the right to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Companyon its liquidation.

The Company may by resolution of Directors redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire all or any of the shares in
the Company subject to regulations set out in the Company’s Articles of Association.

2025 2024
£ £
Authorised
2,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of £0.000001 2,000 2,000
No. of Share Share Share
Shares Capital Premium Reserve
£ £ £
Issued
Balance at 30 June 2023 993,152,034 992 134,481,365 1,686,336
Issued during the year for cash 5,702 - 1,680 -
Issued during the year to settle 16,253,847 16 1,686,320 (1,686,336)
share reserve
Balance at 30 June 2024 1,009,411,583 1,008 136,169,365 -
Issued during the year for cash 5,712 - 1,714 -
Balance at 30 June 2025 1,009,417,295 1,008 136,171,079 -

During the year, warrants for ordinary shares were exercised and a total of 5,712 ordinary shares issued (2024:
5,702 shares issued), with proceeds of £1,680 being received and recorded within share premium (2024:
£1,714).

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to maximise the return to shareholders through the optimisation of equity. The
capital structure of the Company as at 30 June 2025 consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, share premium and accumulated earnings as disclosed.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of economic conditions and the
strategy approved by shareholders. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may make dividend
payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares and release the share premium
account. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year under review.

Warrants

As part of the fundraise completed during December 2021, the Company issued warrants attached to the
fundraising shares on a 1-for-1 basis, and as such, 138,368,193 warrants were issued to investors who
participated in the fundraise. The warrants are exercisable quarterly over a period of two years, at a price of 30
pence per warrant. Al unexercised warrants expired during December 2024, following which there were no



further outstanding share warrants.

Reconciliation of warrants in issue

2025 2024

Number Number

Balance at 1 July 137,235,782 434,345,129
Issued during the year - -
Exercised during the year (5,712) (5,702)
Expired during the year (137,230,070) (297,103,645)

Balance at 30 June - 137,235,782

Consulting fee due to Shellbay
As discussed in note 2, no Shellbay consulting fee was due for the year (2024: £Nil).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

During 2020, the Company established a wholly owned subsidiary entity, Agronomics Investment Holdings
Limited ("the Subsidiary" or "AIHL"), which holds the majority of the portfolio of unquoted investments. Unquoted
investments were transferred by the Company into AIHL at their respective carrying amounts. The investment in
subsidiary is stated at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the IFRS 10 Investment Entity
Consolidation Exception. The fair value of the investment in subsidiary is based on the year-end net asset value
of the subsidiary. Additions and disposals regarding the investment in subsidiary are recognised on trade date.

2024

£

Quoted 21,464 43,352
Unquoted 15,304,733 8,146,774
Investment in subsidiary 105,683,744 136,953,040
121,009,941 145,143,166

The composition of the investments held, both directly and indirectly through the Subsidiaryin the underlying
portfolio, is as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

Equities 105,598,499 136,486,059
Convertible loan notes and SAFEs* 15,411,442 8,657,107
121,009,941 145,143,166

* A SAFE is a Simple Agreement for Future Equity. SAFE Agreements have similar characteristics to Convertible Loans and are designed to
provide an early investor with an "edge" ahead of a larger planned funding. The edge is typically conversion of funds advanced for new equity at a
discount to the subsequent raise.

These financial instruments were mandatorily held as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. See
note 8 - Fair value of financial instruments section - regarding the valuation of investments.

Fnancial instruments

Fnancial Risk Management

The Company has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent it from
achieving its objectives. These policies are intended to manage risks identified in such a way that opportunities
to deliver the Company's objectives are achieved. The Company's risk management takes place in the context of
day-to-day operations and normal business processes such as strategic and business planning. The Directors
hawve identified each risk and are responsible for coordinating and continuously improving risk strategies,
processes and measures in accordance with the Company's established business objectives.

The Company's principal financial instruments consist of investments, cash, receivables and payables arising
from its operations and activities. The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments and the
policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with the counterparty's inability to fulfil its obligations. The Companys
credit risk is primarily attributable to receivables, cash balances, and bank deposits, and conwertible loan
investments, with the maxmum exposure being the reported balance in the statement of financial position. The
Company has a nominal level of debtors and as such the Company believes that the credit risk to these is
minimal. The Company holds available cash and bank deposits with licensed banks and financial institutions.
The Company considers the credit ratings of banks in which it holds funds in order to reduce exposure to credit
risk. Cash balances are available on demand, with bank deposits having varying maturities up to 6 months.
Convertible loan investments held inherently carry a credit risk, due to the early-stage nature of relevant investee
company.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount Carrying amount

2025 2024

£ £

Bank deposits - 9,107,996
Cash and cash equivalents 3,606,187 3,127,096
Trade and other receivables ,407 56,978
Convwertible loan investments 15,301,029 8,143,071
18,959,623 20,435,141

Al of cash and cash equivalent and cash deposit balances are held in A+ credit rated financial institutions. The
Company considers that ECL exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the financial
institutions.



Market price risk
Market price risk is the risk that the market price will fluctuate due to macro-economic issues such as changes in
market factors specific to that security, market interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The Company is exposed to significant market price risks as financial instruments recognised directly by the
Company and indirectly by the Subsidiary are linked to market price volatility.

A 10% increase/decrease in market value of investments held by the Company and its subsidiary would
increase/decrease equity and profit by £12,100,994 (2024: £14,514,316).

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk to the extent that it holds investments that it may not be able to sell
quickly at close to fair value.
The risk is managed by the Company by means of cash flow planning to ensure that future cash requirements
are anticipated and, where financial instruments hawve to be sold to meet these requirements, the process is
carried out in a controlled manner intended to minimise the liquidity risk involved.

The residual undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities are as follows:

30 June 2025 Lessthan 1 1-3  3monthsto 1 1-5 Over5 No stated Total
month  months year  years years maturity
£ £ £ £ £ £
FAnancial liabilities
Trade and other payables 147,601 - - - - - 147,601
30 June 2024 Lessthan 1 1-3  3monthsto 1 1-5 Over5 No stated Total
month  months year  years years maturity
£ £ £ £ £ £
Fnancial liabilities
Trade and other payables 108,849 - - - - - 108,849

Interest rate risk

Asignificant share of the Companys assets is comprised of cash held at banks. As a result, the Company is
subject to risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates. However, income eamed from
bank interest is not considered material to the Companys performance or financial position.

The Company holds investments in convertible loan notes ("CLN"), which attract interest income. The rates of
interest are fixed for each CLN investment held, which results in a reduced interest rate risk.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
At 30 June 2025, the carrying amounts of cash resources, trade and other receivables, and trade and other
payables approximate fair value due to their short-term maturities.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on fluctuations related to financial assets and liabilities held
directly itself and indirectly via its subsidiary that are denominated in a number of currencies. The Investment in
Suprfsilqiary is held in Sterling. The analysis below reflects the underlying currency exposure in the Subsidiary's
portfolio.

GBP equivalents as at 30 June 2025

FAnancial assets at fair value  Cash at bank Total by currency
through profit or loss

£ £ £

usb 70,301,216 7,038 70,308,254
EUR 30,878,675 - 30,878,675
AUD 8,334,499 - 8,334,499
109,514,390 7,038 109,521,428

GBP equivalents as at 30 June 2024
Financial assets at fair value  Cash at bank Total by currency
through profit or loss

£ £ £

usb 77,422,093 1,017,594 78,439,687
EUR 46,453,274 - 46,453,274
AUD 9,229,471 - 9,229,471
133,104,838 1,017,594 134,122,432

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average Average

rate for rate for

active year active year

2025 2024

uSD 1.2938 1.26058
EUR 1.1902 1.16422
AUD 1.9938 1.92118

Year-end Year-end



rate rate

2025 2024
usD 1.3549 1.27093
EUR 11773 1.18058
AUD 2.0869 1.91369

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% percent strengthening of Sterling against the relevant currencies abowe at 30 June 2025, and 10% at 30
June 2024, would have decreased equity and profit for the year by the amounts shown below. The analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2025 Equity and Profit or loss

£
usD 7,030,825
EUR 3,087,867
AUD 833,449
2024 Equity and Profit or loss

£
usD 7,843,969
EUR 4,645,327
AUD 922,947

A 10% percent weakening of Sterling against the relevant currencies above at 30 June 2025, and 10% at 30 June
2024, would have the equal but opposite effect on the basis that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in an active market are based on quoted
market prices. For all other financial instruments, the Company and its subsidiary determine fair values using
other valuation techniques in compliance with IFRS9: Financial Instruments, IFRS13: Fair Value Measurement,
and based on the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines ("IPEV").

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and hawe little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and
requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions
and other risks affecting the specificinstrument.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using; quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data;

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobsenvable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted
prices for similar instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Various valuation techniques may be applied in determining the fair value of investments held as Lewel 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the

price that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy measurement at 30 June 2025

Investments in securities at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments
Quoted 21,464 21,464 - -
Unquoted 15,304,733 - - 15,304,733
Investment in subsidiary 105,683,744 - - 105,683,744
121,009,941 21,464 - 120,988,477

Fair value hierarchy measurement at 30 June 2024

Investments in securities at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments
Quoted 43,352 43,352 - -
Unquoted 8,146,774 - - 8,146,774
Investment in subsidiary 136,953,040 - - 136,953,040
145,143,166 43,352 - 145,099,814

The investment in subsidiary held by the Companyis classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy - being based
on the net asset value of the Subsidiary. Included in the investment in subsidiaryis an investment of £7m in listed
securities.
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Reconciliation of Lewvel 3 investments:

30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Opening balance at 1 July 145,099,814 141,595,967
Purchases 7,542,971 13,472,336
Unrealised foreign currencyloss (7,671,657) (1,948,849)
Unrealised fair value gain - 6,865,234
Unrealised fair value loss (13,188,989) (15,207,551)
Realised fair value loss (11,915,163) -
Accrued interest on loan note investments 1,121,501 322,677
Closing balance at 30 June 120,988,477 145,099,814

The investment in subsidiary held by the Companyis classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy - being based
on the net asset value of the Subsidiary.

Valuation technique

In the absence of observable prices or suitable unobservable model inputs being available and, given level 3
portfolio companies are in the start-up/development stage and in the biotechnology/ biopharmaceutical sector,
the Board believes that a recent share transaction cost represents the best available estimate of fair value. The
price of a recent investment valuation technique, calibrated using both financial and technological milestones, is
commonly used in a seed, start-up or early-stage situations. Where applicable, the Companys Lewel 3
investments are valued at the price of each funding round of the respective companies entered into with their
shareholders, adjusted where necessary should the Directors deem any adjustment is needed in order to
determine the fair value. The fair value of the relevant investee may also be adjusted based on its performance
against predetermined milestones. The Directors deem all investments to be held at fair value. The price of a
recent transaction is deemed most appropriate for the Companys and Subsidiarys unquoted investments.
Although the Board believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. The Board continues to monitor the
performance of the investee entities and the underlying information available in order to assess whether the
valuation technique adopted and the fair value hierarchy remain appropriate.

No reasonably possible alternative assumptions

IFRS 13 requires disclosure, by class of financial instrument, if the effect of changing one or more inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would result in a significant change to the fair value measurement.
However, where fair value is determined with reference to the price of a recent fransaction in the equity shares of
the unquoted company, such a sensitivity analysis is not relevant. As such the Directors consider there are no
reasonably possible alternative assumptions in respect of the level 3 investments held at year end.

The valuation approach adopted for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 is consistent.
Trade and other payables

2025 2024

£ £

Provision for audit fee 57,804 57,318
Trade creditors 89,797 108,849
147,601 166,167

Related party transactions

Under an agreement dated 1 December 2011, Burnbrae Limited, a Company for which Jim Mellon is the ultimate
beneficial owner and Denham Eke is a Director, provide certain senices, principally accounting and
administration, to the Company. This agreement may be terminated by either party on three months' notice. The
charge for senices provided in the year in accordance with the contract was £30,000 (2024: £30,000) of which
£Nil was outstanding as at the year-end (2024: £6,093).

Under an updated agreement dated May 2021, Shellbay Investments Limited, a Company related to both Jim

Mellon and Denham Eke, provides certain senices to the Company (see note 2). The charge for senices

provided in the year was £Nil (2024: £Nil). Under the terms of the agreement, Shellbay is entitled to recharges its

gay-tcgﬁaﬁ/boperating costs. During the year, the Company was recharged costs of £592,983 (2024: £604,843)
om Shellbay.

In accordance with the published investing policy, Jim Mellon holds personal interests both directly and indirectly
in the following investee companies: AgeX Therapeutics Inc, Aphaton Capital Corp (previously called Portage
Biotech Inc), SalvaRX Group PLC, Simply Foods Inc, Good Dog Food Ltd, Onego Bio, Clean Food Group, Bond
Pets, Laverock Therapeutics, Hydgene and Liberation Bioindustries.

Edgewater Associates Limited ("Edgewater”)

During the year, Directors and Officers insurance was obtained through Edgewater, which is a 100% subsidiary
of Manx Financial Group ("MFG"). Jim Mellon and Denham Eke are Directors of MFG and Denham Eke is a
Director of Edgewater.

The annual policy premium was £52,075 (2024: £57,950), and £nil was outstanding as at year-end (2024: £nil).

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the eamings attributable to ordinary shareholders
divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earings per share is based on the basic eamnings per share, adjusted to allow for the
issue of shares, on the assumed conversion of all dilutive share options.

2025 2024

£ £

Loss for the year (32,749,849) (10,989,608)
No. No.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1,009,415,131 999,522,942

Dilutive effect of shares to be issued (Note 6) - -




Diluted number of ordinary shares 1,009,41302% 999 522022
Basicloss per share (pence) (3 21‘) (118

Diluted loss per share (pence) (3.24) (1.10)

13 The Subsidiary
The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary entity, Agronomics Investment Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British \irgin Islands. The Subsidiary was incorporated on 8 July 2020 under the provisions of

the BV Business Companies Act, 2004, as a limited liability company. The principal activity of the Subsidiary is
holding investments on behalf of the Company.

14  Subsequent events

No post year-end events occurred that require disclosure.

ENDS
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